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Dear AMOD,

The AWU are supportive of the Commission's proposed drafting changes.

Kind regards,

ROUSHAN WALSH  | INDUSTRIAL OFFICER
The Australian Workers’ Union
New South Wales Branch
M  041 7137 661| roushan.walsh@nat.awu.net.au
P  02  9897  3644
16 - 20  Good  Street,  Granvi l le  NSW  2142
PO Box  20,  Granvi l le  NSW  2142
www.nsw.awu.net.au
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The information transmitted in  this  message and its attachments (if any) is intended only for the person or  entity to which it is addressed. The 
message may contain intellectual property, copyright material, and confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission,  
dissemination or  other use of,  or  taking of any action in  reliance upon this  information,  by persons or  entities other than the intended 
recipient  is prohibited.  If  you received this  in  error, please contact  the sender and delete this  e-mail and associated material  from any 
computer and destroy any printed associated material. The intended recipient  of this  e-mail may only use,  reproduce,  disclose or  distribute 
the information contained in  this  e-mail and any attached files, with  the authority or  permission of the sender.  We do not accept liability  in  
connection with  computer virus, data corruption, delay,  interruption, unauthorised access or  unauthorised amendment.

From: AMOD <AMOD@fwc.gov.au>
Date: Friday, 8 September 2017 1:28 PM
To: Stephen Bull <Stephen.Bull@unitedvoice.org.au>
Cc: Kate Thomson <kate.thomson@ablawyers.com.au>, "jennifer.zadel@afei.org.au" 
<jennifer.zadel@afei.org.au>, Roushan Walsh <roushan.walsh@nat.awu.net.au>, 
"vwiles@tcfvic.org.au" <vwiles@tcfvic.org.au>, AMOD <AMOD@fwc.gov.au>
Subject: RE: AM2014/264 Dry Cleaning and Laundry Industry Award 2010 [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Good afternoon Mr Bull,
 
The below correspondence has been published on the website and may be viewed via the 
following link:
 
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Industry Award 2010
 
 
Warm regards,
 
LARA MYERS
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Member Support Research Team
 
Fair Work Commission
lara.myers@fwc.gov.au

11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001
www.fwc.gov.au 
 
 

From: Stephen Bull [mailto:Stephen.Bull@unitedvoice.org.au] 
Sent: Friday, 8 September 2017 11:51 AM
To: AMOD; Kate Thomson; jennifer.zadel@afei.org.au; roushan.walsh@nat.awu.net.au; 
vwiles@tcfvic.org.au
Subject: RE: AM2014/264 Dry Cleaning and Laundry Industry Award 2010 [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Dear Amod
 
We would support the removal of the word ‘average’ and that clause 13.1 should read ‘the 
ordinary hours should be 38 hours.’ This is a clearer and less ambiguous formulation particularly 
as there is no formal averaging mechanism within the Award that applies to the work.
 
Thank you for seeking our advice and we trust this assists.
 
 
Stephen Bull
Industrial Coordinator/Legal Practitioner
National Office United Voice
303 Cleveland Street
Redfern NSW 2016
Ph. (02) 8204 3050| Mobile: 0412 199 787
Facsimile: (02) 9281 4480 | Email:stephen.bull@unitedvoice.org.au
 
PLEASE CONSIDER THE ENVIRONMENT BEFORE PRINTING THIS EMAIL
 
The information contained in this e-mail may be confidential, and may also be subject to legal 
professional privilege and is intended only for the use of the addressee named above. If you 
are not the intended recipient of this message, you are hereby notified that any use, 
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message is prohibited. If you have received 
this message in error, please notify Stephen Bull or the United Voice National Office 
immediately by return e-mail, delete this message and destroy any copies. Legal professional 
privilege is asserted in all applicable communications.

 
 
 
 

From: AMOD [mailto:AMOD@fwc.gov.au] 
Sent: Friday, 8 September 2017 11:45 AM
To: Kate Thomson; jennifer.zadel@afei.org.au; roushan.walsh@nat.awu.net.au; 
vwiles@tcfvic.org.au; Stephen Bull
Cc: AMOD
Subject: AM2014/264 Dry Cleaning and Laundry Industry Award 2010 [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
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To interested parties,
 
Re: AM2014/264 Dry Cleaning and Laundry Industry Award 2010
 
Following several conferences and extensive written submissions and correspondence, 
Commissioner Cirkovic issued a draft report to the Full Bench about the matters that 
have been resolved and what remains outstanding. To assit the Commisisoner in 
preparing a final report to the Full Bench in this matter, we are writing to you to provide 
a further opportunity to respond to the following items raised in the submission summary 
document.
 
Please consider the following matters and provide any response to amod@fwc.gov.au by 
4.00 pm on Wednesday 20 September 2017 so that the Commisisoner can finalise the 
report to the Full Bench.
 
Item 22–Shiftwork
 
The AWU raised concerns that clause 24.1 of the exposure draft does not provide a span 
of hours for all shifts. The interested parties agreed that a variation was necessary, but 
did not agree on the form a variation should take. It is important that, where possible, 
exposure drafts do not create ambiguity or uncertainty. On that basis, please consider the 
following draft variation:
 

24.1 Definitions
 
(a) Morning shift—dry cleaning means a shift commencing before 7.00 am and 
finishing after midday.
 
(b) Morning shift—laundry  means a shift commencing before 6.00 am and 
finishing after midday.
 
(c) Afternoon shift means a shift finishing after 6.00 pm and at or before 
midnight.
 
(d) Night shift means a shift finishing after midnight and at or before 8.00 am.
 

 
Item 9– Ordinary hours of work- dry cleaning workplaces
 
The AWU originally made a submission that the ordinary hours of work in exposure draft 
clause 13.1 should be varied as follows:
 

13.1 The ordinary hours of work will average be 38 hours per week.
 
The AWU subsequently withdrew its submission; however the Commission noted that the 
lack of certainty creates an ambiguity. The ordinary hours of work for laundry stream 
employees (exposure draft clause 14.1) also provides for an average of 38 hours per 
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week; however it provides a methodology for averaging hours over a four-week cycle. 
There is no averaging mechanism for dry cleaning stream employees.
 
There are two options for rectifying the ambiguity that the parties can consider: either to 
develop an averaging cycle or to remove the word “average”.
 
In the Commission’s view, removing the word “average” and inserting the word “be” 
would be a technical/drafting variation that would not require any further proceedings, 
whereas inserting an averaging cycle would be a substantive variation that would need to 
be referred to a separate Full Bench for consideration. Accordingly, we would like to 
clarify the views of the interested parties before advising the Full Bench of the 
outstanding matters that require determination.
 
Regards,

AMOD

Fair Work Commission
Tel:  1300 799 675
amod@fwc.gov.au

11 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Victoria 3000 
GPO Box 1994, Melbourne Victoria 3001

www.fwc.gov.au
 
 
Please consider the impact to the environment and your responsibility before printing this 
email. This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for 
the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this 
email in error please notify the sender.
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